
Email: committeeservices@horsham.gov.uk
Direct line: 01403 215465

Horsham District Council, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1RL
Telephone: 01403 215100 (calls may be recorded)   Horsham.gov.uk   Chief Executive – Tom Crowley

222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

1

Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Improvement Sub-Committee
Tuesday, 2nd May, 2017 at 6.00 pm
Hastings & Knepp, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham

Councillors: Brian O'Connell (Chairman)
Nigel Jupp (Vice-Chairman)
Andrew Baldwin
Paul Clarke
Jonathan Dancer

Tim Lloyd
Michael Willett
Leonard Crosbie (ex officio)
David Coldwell (ex officio)

You are summoned to the meeting to transact the following business
Tom Crowley

Chief Executive
Agenda

Page No.

1.  Apologies for absence
2.  Minutes 3 - 4

To approve as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 24th January 2017

3.  Declarations of Members' Interests
To receive any declarations of interest from Members of the Sub-Committee

4.  Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chairman or the Chief Executive

5.  To receive the report on the S106 Funding Review 5 - 8

6.  Review of the Planning Obligations Panel
 Terms of Reference and membership of POP

 The criteria used for making applications to the fund

 Operating procedure followed by officers

 The future of POP and funding for unparished wards in the town where 
it is unlikely there would be any new homes in the future

Public Document Pack



7.  Review of the Planning Obligations Panel - Background Papers 9 - 28

 Planning Obligations Panel – Terms of Reference

 Report to Council 11th December 2013: ‘Section 106 Contributions for 
Open Space, Sport and Recreation – Proposed Changes to Terms of 
Reference and membership of Planning Obligations Panel’

 Report to Cabinet 7th January 2010: ‘Update and Review of the 
Planning Obligations Procedure’



1

Business Improvement Sub-Committee
24 JANUARY 2017

Present: Councillors: Brian O'Connell (Chairman), Andrew Baldwin, Paul Clarke, 
Nigel Jupp, Tim Lloyd and Michael Willett

Apologies: Councillors: Jonathan Dancer

Also Present: Councillor Leonard Crosbie, Chairman of Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee

14  APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN

RESOLVED

That Councillor Nigel Jupp be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Sub-Committee 
for the rest of the Council Year.

15  MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 11th October were approved as a correct 
record.

16  DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

17  ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were no announcements.

18  TO RECEIVE UPDATE FROM THE S106 FUNDING TASK & FINISH GROUP

The Chairman of the Task and Finish Group, which had met on 11th January, 
clarified and confirmed the Terms of Reference which had been agreed.  
Members of this group had also agreed that a review of the Planning 
Obligations Panel (POP) should be undertaken by the Sub-Committee.  

The Chairman of the Sub-Committee advised Members that POP considered 
applications relating to s106 funds for Community Facilities and Open Space, 
Sport and Recreation that were not allocated to a specific site.  The existing 
fund would gradually diminish because, with the introduction of CIL (Community 
Infrastructure Levy), all s106 contributions were for site-specific measures only.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Business Improvement Sub-Committee
24 January 2017

2

Members agreed that POP served a useful purpose in helping to determine how 
unallocated funds were allocated to Parish Councils and community groups for 
enhancing community facilities and projects.  

Members agreed the following Terms of Reference of the review:

 To look at the transparency of the process (current Terms of Reference 
and membership of POP);

 The criteria used for making applications to the fund;

 Operating procedure followed by officers;

 The future of POP and funding for unparished wards in the town where it 
was unlikely there would be any new homes in the future.

An additional meeting would be arranged in April to carry out the review, which 
would be reported to the Sub-Committee on 2nd May 2017.

The Community Development Officer (Grants and Funding) would be invited to 
attend.  The Monitoring Officer would also be invited to advise on the 
jurisdiction of Parishes and the District Council with regard to the allocation of 
non site-specific s106 monies.

The meeting closed at 7.00 pm having commenced at 6.00 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 4



Business Improvement Sub-Committee

Draft Final Report on S106 Funding Review

Executive Summary

The Business Improvement Sub-Committee has undertaken a review of s106 
Funding.  The review examined the process and procedures for the allocation 
and holding of S106 monies and this report confirms that monies from Section 
106 procedures are accountable and available to interested and qualified parties.

Recommendations

1. To investigate the possibilities for an appropriate way to fund Parishes 
and Wards with no planned developments.

2. To investigate an appropriate way to fund unparished areas (eg 
Horsham Town) that will have community projects but no developments.

3. To continue to send the same Section 106 reports to Ward Members as 
sent to Parish Councils, thereby allowing Members to stay updated and 
work better with Parish Councils on Section 106 monies.

Reasons for Recommendations

1 To ensure the availability of Section 106 monies is known by the 
Members and Parish Councils to they can be used as and when 
intended.

2 To correct a possible lack of availability of Section 106 money for 
Parishes and Wards with no developments.

Background Papers

1. Report to Council dated 11 December 2013 by The Chief Executive 
“Section 106 Contributions for Open Space, Sport and Recreation – 
Proposed Changes to Terms of Reference and membership of Planning 
Obligations Panel”

2. Business Improvement Working Group’s Final Report onS106 Review 
by Cllr. Brian O’Connell, April 2016

3. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Minutes 28 November 2016 S0/37 (b)

4. Task and Finish Review Group Notes 11 January 2017 (not for 
publication)

5. Task and Finish Review Group Agenda 8 February 2017 (pp 3-46 
inclusive Restricted)

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Background Information

The purpose of this report is to give reassurance that the process and 
procedures for the allocation and holding of S106 monies are working 
satisfactorily.

The S106 Task and Finish Review Group was established under the Business 
Improvement Sub-Committee by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28 
November 2016.  The Task and Finish Review Group first met on 11 January 
2017 and agreed the following Terms of Reference:

 To ascertain the total amount of unspent and unallocated s106 funding.

 To ascertain the amount of s106 funding allocated to each type as set 
up by the Council, including Open Space Sport and Recreation and 
Community Facilities.

 To ascertain the total amount of s106 monies given to WSCC and their 
percentage allocation of the funds across types of use.

 To ascertain the amount of commuted sums for affordable housing 
including: where it is held and what is going to be done with it.

 To review the process of s106 reporting for Parish and Neighbourhood 
Councils.

 To clarify the amount of money remaining to be allocated by the 
Planning Obligations Panel.

At a meeting of the Task and Finish Review Group on 8 February 2017, the 
Planning Obligations Officer provided details of:

 The total amount of Section 106 Funds being held by HDC.

 The allocated and unallocated S106 funds being held by type for both 
HDC and WSCC contributions.

 A spreadsheet of S106 agreements entered into since 1 April 2014.

 An example of a spreadsheet sent to the Parish councils.

The Planning Obligations Officer confirmed by email on 2 February 2017 that 
a summary of unspent S106 funds per Parish/Neighbourhood Council area 
would be sent on a quarterly basis to all Councillors.

Page 6



At the Review Group’s meeting on 8 February the Head of Finance gave a 
detailed summary of figures on Allocated and Unallocated S106 funds.  The 
monies are being held on the balance sheet in three areas:

 Capital grants and receipts in advance – Capital with Conditions

 Useable reserves – Capital grants and contributions unapplied – 
Capital with no conditions

 Useable Reserves – Reserves

West Sussex County Council monies are held under Long Term        
Liabilities –S106 Contributions

The Planning Obligations Officer was asked if the Allocated and    
Unallocated S106 funds report could be produced again alongside the new 
Balance Sheet on 31 March 2017, noting that this will be dependent on 
availability of information from Finance. 
   
The Review Group concluded that the objectives of the review that were 
relevant had been met and a report should go to the Business Improvement 
Sub-Committee based on the work done by this group.   

    
Next Steps

To review the recommendations 1 and 2 in the next Municipal Year and to   
continue to send out reports as mentioned in recommendations 3.

Councillor Michael Willett
Chair S106 Review Task and Finish Group
April 2017

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Obligations Panel

Membership:

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Planning Committee (North) 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Planning Committee (South) 
Cabinet Member for Planning and Development
Cabinet Member for Leisure and Culture
Cabinet Member for Community and Wellbeing
One Minority Group Member*
One Independent Member*

* If not already represented within the ex-officio members

Terms of Reference:

To consider applications relating to the allocation of non site-specific funds for 
Community Facilities (CF) and Open Space, Sport and Recreation (OSSR) 
and related purposes received under agreements made pursuant to section 
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and to make 
recommendations to the Development Manager on the determination thereof.  

Applications for sums under £2,500 will be determined by the Development 
Manager and reported to the Panel for information.

Local Members, representatives of Parish and Neighbourhood Councils and 
applicants are to be given the opportunity to address the Panel in relation to 
relevant applications.

Guidance on Open Space, Sport and Recreation (OSSR) applications:

In assessing applications for OSSR funding allocations the Development 
Manager and the Panel should attach particular weight to proposals which:

a) address a deficiency in provision of or secure improvements to 
Open Space, Sport and Recreation facilities in the prescribed 
area;

b) relate to the original development from which the contribution 
was generated on a local, neighbourhood, sub-district or 
strategic level;

c) are identified in a District/Parish/Community Action plan;
d) show creative design elements;
e) secure additional funding from other sources.

Applications may be made by Parish Councils or other properly constituted 
local bodies for projects relating to CF and OSSR schemes in their area.  
Prior to any applications being considered, ward Members will be consulted 
and their views sought.  Bodies other than parish councils wishing to apply for 
funding should consult and seek support from their local Parish or 
Neighbourhood Councils.

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Council 11/12/13)

Report to Council
11th December, 2013
By the Chief Executive
DECISION REQUIRED

Not exempt

Section 106 Contributions for Open Space, Sport and Recreation – 
Proposed Changes to Terms of Reference and membership of Planning 
Obligations Panel.

Executive Summary

This report proposes changes to the terms of reference and membership of the Planning 
Obligations Panel to put in place a robust and transparent process for the allocation of 
funds collected through section 106 agreements for open space, sport and recreational 
(OSSR) facilities that are not restricted to specific sites. The agreements which secured 
the funds do specify the geographical area (usually defined as the parish) which must 
benefit from the use of the funds. 

In June 2005 Council agreed a process for dealing with the allocation of non site specific 
community facilities funds generated through section 106 agreements attached to planning 
permissions. This included the creation of what has become known as the Planning 
Obligations Panel.

The panel was not constituted as a committee of the Council and did not have delegated 
authority but instead was designed to act as a consultative body to enable the relevant 
officer to make decisions on the allocation of non site specific s106 funds for community 
facilities in the light of its conclusions. A different arrangement was made for non site 
specific OSSR contributions. This has proved ineffective and the matter has been 
revisited. In doing so consultations have been carried out recently with parish and 
neighbourhood councils to raise awareness of the OSSR funds and potential uses. 

The Council currently holds £717,000 of uncommitted non site specific section106 
contributions for the provision of OSSR facilities.  

Further work is underway to prepare for the implementation in April 2015 of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy. This will be linked to the adoption of the District Planning 
Framework and will, for the most part, replace s106 agreements as a means of securing 
financial contributions for infrastructure and facilities. New procedures will need to be put 
in place and there is also an opportunity to review and revise other aspects of the s106 
process including the monitoring and publication of the collection and distribution of funds. 
A further report on these matters will be brought to Cabinet in the new year. 

Page 11



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Council 11/12/13)

Recommendations

Council is recommended to:

i) Delegate decisions relating to allocation of non site-specific funds for community 
facilities, open space, sport and recreation and related purposes received under 
agreements made pursuant to section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 to the Head of Planning and Environmental services in consultation 
with the Planning Obligations Panel.

ii) Reconstitute the Planning Obligations Panel to include the Chairmen and Vice 
Chairmen of the two Development Control Committees, the Cabinet Members 
for Living and Working Communities, Arts, Heritage and Leisure and Safer and 
Healthier Communities plus one Liberal Democrat Member and one 
Independent Member.

iii) Agree the criteria to guide decisions on allocation of funds set out in paragraph 
3.6 of the report. 

Reasons for Recommendations

i) To establish a transparent and robust process for the allocation of non site 
specific s106 funds.

ii) To ensure appropriate member input to the process. 

iii) To guide future decisions on the allocation of funds.

Background Papers:  Correspondence with Parish and Neighbourhood Councils 

Consultation:  Parish and Neighbourhood Councils

Wards affected:  All

Contact
Tom Crowley ext 5101

Page 12



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Council 11/12/13)

Background Information

1 Introduction

The purpose of this report

1.1 This report proposes changes to the terms of reference and membership of the 
Planning Obligations Panel to put in place a robust and transparent process for the 
allocation of funds collected through section 106 agreements for open space, sport 
and recreational (OSSR) facilities that are not restricted to specific sites.

Background

1.2 Since the advent of the planning system in 1948, local planning authorities have 
had the ability to negotiate and enter into agreements with developers.  They are 
able to secure covenants and obligations that go beyond matters that can be 
controlled by conditions attached to planning permissions.  Currently these 
agreements are entered into under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990.  

1.3 The Horsham District Local Development Framework to 2018 (Planning Obligations 
Supplementary Planning document June 2007) provides guidance regarding the 
definition and scope of such provisions.  In addition to site specific infrastructure 
funding contributions (e.g. Sustainable Transport & Highways), financial 
contributions have also been made under these arrangements which can be divided 
into

(a) funds allocated for community facilities 
(b) funds provided for Open Space, Sport & Recreation Facility enhancements 

where developments are contributing to off-site provision

1.4 In June 2005 Council agreed a process for dealing with the allocation of non site 
specific community facilities funds generated through section 106 agreements 
attached to planning permissions. This included the creation of what has become 
known as the Planning Obligations Panel. This was referred to in the report at the 
time as follows:

The application be presented to a Panel comprising the Cabinet Members for Strategic 
Planning, Leisure and Cultural Services and Community Partnerships and Housing and 
the Chairmen and Vice Chairmen of the two Development Control Committees. The 
response of Local Members will be reported to the Panel and will have the opportunity to 
address the meeting along with Parish and Neighbourhood Council Members and the 
chairman of the Community Strategy Transport Group.   

1.5 The panel was not constituted as a committee of the council and did not have 
delegated authority but instead was designed to act as a consultative body to 
enable the relevant officer to make decisions on the allocation of non site specific 
s106 community facilities funds in the light of its conclusions. A different 
arrangement was made for non site specific open space and recreation 
contributions. This has proved ineffective and the matter has been revisited. In 
doing so consultations have been carried out recently with parish and 
neighbourhood councils to raise awareness of the OSSR funds and potential uses. 

Page 13



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Council 11/12/13)

1.6 Scope of Open Space, Sport & Recreation Facility Contributions

The Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning document states that “any new 
residential development can normally be expected to generate the additional need 
for Open Space, Sport and Recreation opportunities that is proportional to the scale 
of the development.  As far as is possible, the need should be met through provision 
on site.  Where it is not considered appropriate to provide all categories of open 
space, sport and recreational facilities on-site, the developer will be expected to 
make financial contributions to the Council that can be pooled towards the cost of 
providing new or extended off-site facilities and open space.  New or enhanced 
existing facilities for which contributions are sought should clearly relate to the 
development site at the local, district-wide or sub-regional level as appropriate.”

1.7 For the sake of clarity, the definitions included in the LDF of the two funding sources 
are provided as follows:

(a) Community facilities:  ‘…provides pooled financial contributions 
towards enhancing existing community buildings and other community 
managed facilities’.

(b) Open Space, Sport and Recreation:  ‘This provision can include 
indoor and outdoor sports, recreation and leisure facilities as well as 
equipped play space for children and more informal open space’.

(Horsham District LDF; Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning 
Guidance   p56/61.)

1.8 It should be noted that this is primarily an arrangement to use developer funds that 
come from agreements that pre-date the introduction of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations in April 2010 which transformed the tests set out in 
guidance on the allocation of contributions (Circular 05/05) into statutory 
requirements.  These Regulations require identification at the outset of the 
application process of the infrastructure that will be adversely affected by the 
development or that will be required as a result of it and the infrastructure that will 
therefore attract contributions. 

2 Statutory and Policy Background

Statutory background

2.1 Under s106 the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 Local Planning Authorities 
have power to enter in agreements to regulate the use of land and to secure 
infrastructure and appropriate financial contributions.

3 Details

3.1 The Council currently holds £717,000 of uncommitted developer contributions for 
the provision of OSSR facilities.  Full details are contained in the Council’s s106 
database which is regularly updated. A summary of the current  position relating to 
the OSSR sums is included at Appendix 1.

Page 14



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Council 11/12/13)

3.2 All allocations have a prescribed use identified in the Section 106 agreement which 
generally identifies the parishes or wards which should benefit from the contribution. 
It is important to note, however, that in some cases a contribution could be 
used towards a project which is outside the Parish or Neighbourhood boundary, 
where it could be demonstrated that there would be a benefit to the ward within 
which the development took place.  It may therefore be appropriate to allocate 
funding outside of a Parish or Neighbourhood boundary, but the funding stream for 
each project will need to be considered on a case by case basis.

3.3 In reviewing the current approach to the use of the OSSR funds all Parish and 
Neighbourhood Councils were contacted and a workshop was held on 22nd 
October. The purpose of this exercise was to draw attention to the funds and to 
stimulate discussion about potential projects.

3.4 A number of potential projects in Horsham have been identified and are being 
explored by officers. These will be reported to the panel in the new year subject to 
Council agreeing the revised terms of reference and composition. They include:

 Trinity Cricket Club, Horsham – New Clubhouse and Community Facilities
 The College of Richard Collyer, Horsham – Disabled Sports Facilities 
 Bennett’s Field Recreation Ground, Horsham – Refurbishment of Changing 

Rooms
 Hardy Close, Horsham – Landscaping and Parking.

3.5 Parish and Neighbourhood Councils have been advised about the proposed 
changes to the panel’s terms of reference and will be encouraged to put forward 
proposals relating to the funds generated from and for the benefit of their areas. In 
addition officers will continue to examine the scope for promoting and supporting 
schemes especially where there could be the ability to lever in additional funding 
from other sources to meet community needs and corporate priorities.

3.6 In assessing applications for OSSR funding allocations it is proposed that the Head 
of Planning and Environmental Services and the Panel should attach particular 
weight to proposals which::

a) address a deficiency in provision of or secure improvements to Open Space, 
Sport and Recreation facilities in the prescribed area;

b) relate to the original development from which the contribution was generated 
on a local, neighbourhood, sub-district or strategic level;

c) are identified in a District/Parish/Community Action plan;
d) show creative design elements.
e) Secure additional funding from other sources.

3.7 Applications may be made by Parish Councils, or other properly constituted local 
bodies for projects relating to OSSR schemes in their area.  Prior to any 
applications being made, ward members will be consulted and their views sought. 
Bodies other than parish councils wishing to apply for funding should consult and 
seek support from their local Parish or Neighbourhood Councils.

Page 15



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Council 11/12/13)

3.8 The Council’s Lotteries and Grants Officer will provide guidance and support 
regarding the process, and Parks & Countryside Officers will continue their advisory 
role regarding technical guidance such as children’s play, sports fields etc.

4 Next Steps

4.1 Subject to Council approving the changes the new arrangements will be publicised 
and the re-constituted panel will meet in the new year to consider appropriate 
applications. 

5 Staffing Consequences

7.1 The bulk of the work associated with these changes will fall to the Lottery and 
Grants Officer and Parks & Countryside Officers. The impact will be kept under 
review.

8 Financial Consequences

8.1 The proposed process will ensure that developer contributions are allocated by an 
accountable and auditable methodology.

Page 16



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 17



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 18



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 19



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 20



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 21



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 22



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 23



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 24



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 25



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 26



Background Papers – POP Review (Report to Cabinet 07/12/10)

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 To receive the report on the S106 Funding Review
	7 Review of the Planning Obligations Panel - Background Papers
	Report to Council 11-12-13 POP
	Report to Cabinet 01-01-10 POP




